Dowan ?M%Wug%

Chartered Accountants

C-109, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110 024, India
Phones : +91-11-24645895/96 E-mail : audit@dpncindia.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Pharmax Corparation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pharmax Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, and loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 30 of the Statement which describes the management's assessmenit of the impact of the
outbreak of Covid-19 on property plant & equipment, investment property, revenue, trade receivables and other
assets. The management believes that no adjustments are required in the financial statements as there is no impact in
the current financial year. However, in view of highly uncertain economic environment and its likely effect on future
revenues due to Covid-19, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is dependent upon
Circumstances as they evolve,

Qur Opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
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position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
ercor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financiat statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit. :




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

1. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the consequent lockdown/curfew and travel restrictions imposed by the
Government/local administration during the audit period, the audit processes could not be carried out physically at the
Company's premises.

The statutory audit was conducted via making arrangements to provide requisite documents/ information through
electronic medium as an alternative audit procedure.

As a part of alternative audit procedure, the Company has made available the following information/ records/
documents/ explanations to us through e-mail and remote secure network of the Company: -

a) Scanned copies of necessary records/documents deeds, certificates and the related records made available
electronically through e-mail or remote secure network of the Company; and

b) By way of enquiries through video conferencing, dialogues and discussions over phone, e-mails and similar
communication channels,

It has also been represented by the management that the data and information provided electronically for the purpose
of our audit are correct, complete, reliable and are directly generated from the accounting system of the Company,
extracted from the records and files, without any further manual modifications so as to maintain its integrity,
authenticity, readability and completeness. In addition, based on our review of the various internal audit
reperts/inspection reports, nothing has come to our knowledge that make us believe that such alternate audit
procedure would not be adequate.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;




(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of
changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appainted as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us;

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements - Refer Note 21 to the financial statements;

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. ¢

UDIN: 21505371AAAAMHS5879
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 10' June, 2021



ANNEXURE-ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph - 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Report of even date.)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given by the
management and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we report that: -

(i} {a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.
{b) The management has physically verified the property, plant and equipment at reascnable intervals and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
{¢) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(i) The company does not have inventory; hence paragraph 3(ii) of this order is not applicable.

(i) The company has granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013,
(a) tn our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions of such loans are not, prima
facie, prejudicial to the company's interest.
(b) In our opinion, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated
and the repayments and/or receipts are regular.
() There are no overdue amounts overdue for more than 90 days.

(iv) In our opinion, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

() The company has not accepted any deposits; hence the paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable.
(vi) In our opinion, paragraph 3{vi) of the order is not applicable.
(vii) (a) On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books

of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, goods and services tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and any other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the company
with the appropriate authorities, though there has been slight delay in a few cases to the extent applicable to
it.

In our opinion, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, goods and services
tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} On the basis of cur examination of the books of accounts and records, there is no dues of income tax or
goods and services tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax or
cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

{viii) Company has not taken any loans from financial institutions, Banks, Government or through debentures
during the audit period.

(ix) In our opinion the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) and term loans. Hence, paragraph 3(ix} of the Order is not applicable.




(x)

(i)

(i)
{xiii)

{xiv)

{(xv)

(xewi)

In our opinion, no material fraud by the company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

No managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Hence, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our examination of the records of the Company and in our opinion, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on our examination of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has made private
placement of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Preference Shares (refer note 10 to the financial statements). The
company has complied with the requirement of section 42 of the companies Act, 2013 and the amount
raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 21505371AAAAMH5879
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 10" June, 2021



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF PHARMAX CORPORATION LIMITED '

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pharmax Corporation Limited (“the

Company”} as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's poficies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and ervors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that 3 material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financia! reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants _
Firm Regn. No. 000472N .. : >

" -

MembersHip No.
UDIN: 21505371AAAAMHS879
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 10 June, 2021



Pharmax Corporation Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021
CIN- U24232PB1989PLC009741

\/

(Rs. in_Lacs)
Particulars Notes Ag at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2.35 5.21
Investment Property 4 3,489.75 2,168.75
Financial assets 5
(i) Loans ‘ - 38.00
Deferred tax assets (net) 20 43.83 43.83
3,535.93 2,255.79
Current assets
Financial assets 6
(i) Loans - 1,000.00
(ii} Trade receivables 10.95 239
(iii} Other financial assets 28.68 24537
{iv} Cash and cash equivalents 34.56 79.96
Other current assets 7 58.41 313.66
Current tax assels 8 11.36 5.60
143.96 1,646,58
TOTAL ASSETS 3,679.89 3,902.77
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 9 555.92 555.92
Other equity 9 1,600.60 (348.76)
Total equity 2,156.52 207.16
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 10
(i) Borrowings 270,49 96.53
(ii) Other non-current financial liabilitics 49.40 12.70
319.89 109.23
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 11
(i) Borrowings 1,138.44 -
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali enterprises - -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 7.74 9.87
(iii) Other financial liabilities 54.10 3,561.83
Other current liabilities 12 1.00 14.68
Current tax liabilities 2.20 -
1,203.48 3,586.38
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,523.37 3,695.61
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,679.89 3,902.77
Summary of significan céquﬁh,gkg‘ollcl 2
Other notes on accoupg$ ,.g” . 3-34
~

.l;')

¢ financial statements

Membersh No. 505371
For and on behalf of
Dewan P.N. Chopra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 000472N

UPIMI 2158 3H AAD.Q‘M\-\S‘S’ 29
Place : New Dethi

Date : 10th June, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pharmax Corporation Limited

4

shi Raj

{Chairman)
{DIN 08490762)

Place : New Delhi
Date: 10th June,2021



Pharmax Corporation Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31,2021

CIN- U24232PB1989PLCO0GS741

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particuars Notes For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2021 31, 2020
INCOME
Revenue from operations 13 40.44 21.67
Other income 14 3.14 25.60
Total income 43.58 4727
EXPENSES
Employee benefits expense 15 - .81
Finance costs 16 230.85 164.53
Depreciation and amortization expense 17 33.55 8.84
Other expenses 18 49.43 1i7.37
Total expenses 313.83 291,58
Profit/(Less) before tax (270.25) {244.28)
Tax expenses
- Current tax 120 3.65
Less: MAT credit entitlernent - -
- Dreferred tax - 109.23
-Income Tax patd for earlier years {0.42) 6.51
Total tax expense 1.78 119.39
Profit/{Loss) after tax (272.03) (363.67)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent year:
Income tax effect - -
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax . -
Total comprehengsive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax {272.03} {363.67)
Earnings per equity share (Nominal Value of share Rs.1/-) (refer note 20)
Basic {Rs.) (0.49) (0.66)
Diluted (Rs.) (0.4%) (0.66)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts . 334
‘i \,’ e o™ For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors of
o~ . Pharmax Corptzralion Limited
pf the'finkpeial statements !l G} S
Rishi Raj
(Chairman)
(DIN 08490762)
'or and on behalf of
Dewan P.N. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000472N
UDINS 2155 SIHAAR AW TEH
Place : New Delhi
Date : 10th June, 2021 Place : New Dethi

Date; 10th June, 2021



Pharmax Corporation Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

CIN- U24232PB1989P1.C009741

1) Equity share capital

Particulars Nos, (Rs. in Lacs)
As at March 31, 2019 5,53,25,752 553,26
Add: Equity share issued during the year - .
As at March 31, 2020 §,53,25,752 553.26
Add: Equity share issued during the year - .
As at March 31, 2021 5,53,25,752 553.26
b} Other equity (Rs. in_Lacs)
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total equity
Security Premium | Retained Equity Equity
earnings |Componerit of 9%| Component of
Cumulative 10% Cumulative
Redeemable Compulsory
Preference Shares Convertible
Preference Shares

As at March 31, 2019 = 1,102.26 365.20 - 1,967.46
Add: Premium on 10% Cumulative Compulsory Covertible )

Preference Shares 1,384.80 - - - 1,384.80
Adjustment on extinguishment of original liability of 9%

Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares - 865.20 (865.20) - -
Less: Premium on 9% Cumulative Reedemable Preference

Shares (CRPS) (Refer Note 5(ii) & Note 29) (1,384.803  (1,955.34) - - (3,340.14)
Balance after adjustment of Premiom on CRPS - 12.12 - - 12.12
Profit / (Loss) for the year - (363.67) - - (363.67)
Distribution of Profit on account of Financial Guarantee

provided to Holding Company - (14.36) (14.36)
Equity component of 10% Compound Financial - - - 17.15 17,15
As at March 31, 2020 - (365.91) - 17.18 (348.76)
Profit / {Loss) for the vear - {272.03) - - (272.03)
Distribution of Profit on account of Financial Guarantee

provided to Holding Company - (21.25) - - (21.25)
Equity component of 10% Compound Financial - - - 27.44 27.44
Add: Premium on 10% Cumulative Compulsory Covertible

Preference Shares 2,215.20 - - - 2,215.2¢
As at March 31, 2021 2,215.20 {659.19) - 44.59 1,600.60
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-34

For and on behalf of
Dewan P.N. Chopra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 000472N

UDIN: 218653 H ARARA MK $§I9
Place : New Delhi .

Dale : 10th June,2021

Fer and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pharmax Corporatien Limited

»

K

Rishi Raj

(Chairman)

{DIN 08420762)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10th June,2021



Pharmax Corporation Limited
Statement of cash flows for the period ended March 31, 2021
CIN- U24232PB1989PLC009741

{Rs. in_Lacs)
Particulars for the perlod ended for the period ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash flow from operating netivities
Profit/(Loss) before tax (270.25) (244.28)
Adjustments (o reconclie profit before (ax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 31.55% §.84
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 523
Profit on sale of current investment - (2.46)
Profit on sale of Long term Investment - (19.42)
Interest income 037 {3.04)
Guarantee Fee Income - Ind AS )] {0.06)
Finance costs 230.85 164.53
Operating profit before working capltal changes (8.99) {90.66)
Working capltal adjustments;
[ncrease / (Decrease} in other current finanacial liabilities (168.34) 56.39
(Incrense) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (8.56) 837
(Increase) / Decrease in other non current finanacist assets 38.00 -
Increase / (Decrease) in other non current finanacial ligbilities 21,00 (101.23)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 25525 (259.44)
(Increase} / Decrease in other current financial assets (28.68) 0.00
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables {15.81) (65.68)
Cash generated from operatlons 8387 (452,25)
Income tax paid (5.85) (185.10)
Net cash flows used in operating activitles 78.02 (637.35)
Cash flow from Investlng activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 244,00 2,256.40
Proceeds from sale of investments in Joint Venture - 718.48
Proceeds from sale of investments in Mutual Funds - 131.81
Interest Received 1.74 2.34
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {including intangible assets, CWIP and capital (1,35L.68) (1,398.31)
advances)
Net cash flows used in Investing activitles {1,105.94) 1,710.72
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from [ssuance of 10% CCPS 2,399.79 1,500.20
Redemption of Preference Shares (3,340.14) (1,500.00)
Interest paid (215.57) (12.48)
Loan te Holding Company 1,000.00 {1,000.00)
Proceeds from shon-term borrowings 1,138.44
Net cash flows from financing actlvities 982.52 (1,012.28)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {45.40) 61.09
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7996 18.87
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 34.56 79.96
Components of cash and cash equivalents :-
{Rs. In Lacs)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 34.43 79.76
Cash on hand 0.13 0.20
34.56 79.96

Summary of significant accounting policies
Other notes on accounts

Dewan P.N, Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
FRN : 000472N -
UDING 2158 T2 HARNATIHSE9
Place : New Delhi

Date : 10th June, 2021

2
3.34

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Pharmax Co: o‘rnﬂon Limited

Rishi Raj
{Chairman)

Place:
Date:

X

(DIN 08490762)

New Delhi
10th June, 2021



Pharmsy Corporatisn Limited

1
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Corporatr Infarmsitan

The sandatone fiaancio) Matementa compeise financial of Pharmax Corporation Limited (the eomp for the year ended March 31, 202t. Pharmax Corporation Lunited ("Pharmox™) is o
public limited company registered under Companica Acl, 2013, The vampany is engaged in the business of deals in leaxing of Eatates

The Qinencial were outhotised for issue in danos with & iomy of the directocs on 10th hune 2021

Signiflcant accounting policies

Basls of preparation

The financisl sistzments of the Company hove heen prepared in d with ladien A ing Stondsrds (Tnd AS) notified under the Compenics (Tndisn A ing Standardy) Rules, 2015 (an
#mended from lima to time). For all periods up to snd ingluding the yesr ended March 3, 2018, the Company prepared ils fnsncial in d i dards nutified under the

section 11 of the Companies Act 2013, read logether with paregraph ¥ of the Campanics (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {Indian QAAP}. The fitiancin) statements for the yen;-nded March 31, 2019 are the
first the Company' has prepared in acotrdance with Ind AS.

The financial eatements have been prepared on s histotical cost bain, «excepd for the Following assels and lishilities which have been mesnured at fuie velue
(i} Certain financis) axsets end liokilities that ore measured ot foir valus
Financin) Statement are presented in INR and all values are rounded (3 peares! Lacs {INR 00,000} excep when stherwise gtated

Summary af signifieant a¢counting polictes
Currenl versus han-current <lanificatian

The Company prescnts agsets nd Liskilitics in the batance sheet based on current! non<cursent elassification. An assel id Geeated an current when it is:
(i) Expeeted ta be reslized oc intended to be gold &f consumed ix: normal aperating eycle

(i} HeXd primarity for the prpass of treding

{iii) Bxcpected 1o be fealized within twelve months afier the repocting period, or

{iv) Cath or cazh cquivalent unless icted from being exch d or used to setila 8 linbility for at lenst twehe manths 2fler the Teporting period

All other agsets are cloasificd na non-current.

A liatility i current when:

{id 1t in expected to be sefiled in ncemal operating eycle

4ii) It is held primorily far the purpose of tading

Gii} It in due to settled within twehe manths after the reparting period, or

(i) There ix o unconditional right 1o defer the setilement of the liskitity tor at Jeon twelvo montha afler the reporting period

The Comprny clazsifics a1l other lishilitics an non-current.

Deferred tx nxeels and liabilities are classificd as non-current nesets 1nd Liabilities.

The aperating cycla is tho time between the sequisition of aszety far pr ing and their realization in cash and cash cquivalents. The Cornpany hes identified twelve mantha as its operating cycle

. Property, Plant and Equipment
Froperty, Plant #nd equipment in¢luding capita] work in progress ara stated af oost, Jeas ilated d snd Tated i Tosses, if any. The cost comprizes of purchass price,
texes, duties, Feight and other incidental expenses directly stiributable and related to quisition and i ion of the d as3¢ts and aro flrther adjusied by the amownt of CENVAT credit
and VAT credit svajled wherever applicable. When significant parts of plant end Equipment dre required to be septeced ot intervals, the Company deprecintes them tcporutely based on their respective
usefil lives, Likewise, when s mujar inspecticn is perf d, its cost is recognized in the canrying amount of the plam end equi as o reph if the ition eriterin are satisfied All

olhez repair and maintenance casis are resognized i; profit or Lazs us incirred,

Ax item of preperty, plant and equipment and any significan port Ity recognized is derecognized upon disposal or whea o future economic benefits e expected from ite use or dispossl. Any
BAin of Lass arising on d gaition of the assct (calculated nz the diffe between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying nmount of the saset} is inchuded in the incomes statement when the
aszel is derecognized,

The company identifies and determines cosi af £ath +ompanenl/ part of the asset separately, if the campenent/ part has 4 cost which is eignificant ta the kato) cost af tho nyset and has usciul life Lhal iy
tnsteriolly different fram that of the remaining aesel

Capital work- it progreas includes cast of propesty, plant and ip under installation / under develop: o3 4l the bolance sheet dnis,

The residual vetues, useful lives and methods of deprecintion of praperty, glant and equipnient are reviewsd o ¢ach financicl year ead and adjusted protpectively, if approprinte.

Deprecistion on graperty, plant and equipment is pravided on prozets basis on sienight-tine method uring the useful lives of the assety catimated by management and in the manner preseribed in
Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013,

Investmend property
Property that is held for Jang term rents) yields of for capital apprecistion o for both. and that is not oceupied by the Company, in clasgifled os i property. I praperty is 4
initially #1 its cost, including relaled trunsaction cast mnd whera applicatle b ing cosls. Sub diture is capitaliced to sascts carrying smouni caly when it is prabable thai furure

ie benefin inted with the expenditure will flow to the Comnpany ond the cost of the jten can be measured relisbly. All ather repair and maintenanca sost are expensed when incurred

When part of an investment property ia replaced, the camying umount of the replesed part is derecognised.
Invesiment property consint of copital work-in-progress relating 1o initial cost incurred far purchasa of land and building. The Company will amariise the leasehold land on s strright line basis aver
the tease period and buitding will be depreciticd using the etraight line method over their extimated useful life.

Inpairmend of nen financisl anet

The Company asseeses ai cach reparting date whether there is an indicstion that an assel may be impaired If any indication sxists, or when annual impoirment testing for ab aseet is sequised, the
Company eslimetes the wesel's, ecoverable amount. An a55e1’s covaversble amount js the highet of an sssct’s ar cash-genenating unit's {COU) net welling price and its value in use, The recoverable
amount iy determined or an individual asser, unless the asset does not generate cash inflown that arm largely independent of hoze from other ansets or §reups of assels, Where the carrying smoumi of
#1201 07 COU exceeds ily recovernble nmount, the asset is considered impaired and is written dowh 1o it recoverable nmount, In nxsezzing vabue in wae, Lhe estimated filure cash flows are ditesimted
tor their present valus wing o pre-tax discount ratd that reflecta current market assessents of tho time vatug of masey and the risks specifio 1o the aszet. In delermining net sellatg price, recent market
transsctions are $sken into sceaimt, if available. If no wuch i ‘be identified, an sppropriste valustion model is used,

The Company bases its impairment ealculatian an detailed budgets and forecast caleylatiaas which ste prepered scparaiely for each of the Campany’s cash=gnersting units to which the individusl
axsets are ollocated. Thesa budgets and forecast ealeutations are generally eavering o period of five years. For (he temaining coamomio life of the enscl or cash-generating unit (CGU), o leng term
growth rate is calculuted and epplied to project futura cagh Nowa afler the fifth year

knpairment lossey including ispainent on inventories, are recogmized in the fatement of profit and loss,

Alter impairment, depreciation is provide on the reviged carrying amotnt of the assat over it retadining ccanomio Life.

An sxsesanents iy mada &t cach reporting date a3 to whether there is any indiration that previcusly r ized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased Ifsuch indication exists,
1he Campany estimates the agsel’s of cash ing unit’s Amouni. A pr ly recognited impai loss is reversed only if therm has been a changa in (he sssumptions used Lo
determine the assst’s recovenibie amount since the [aet impairment loss wan recognized. Tha reversal iz limitad so that the carTying smavmt of the asset docs not exceed its recoversbla smount, nar
exeend the carrying amount that would have been d ined, ned of d intion, had no impai los3 been recogni d for the aset in prior years. Such reversol is recognized in the flaement of
prafit and loss unless the amet i enrried st 8 revalusd amount, in which case the reversal i reoted a3 8 revatustion inczesge.
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& Financlal Insinitvents .
A financial insrument is any contract thsl gives rise 1 a financisl asset of one entity and a financial lishility o7 equity inatrument of ancther entity.

{1 Financlal assets

The Company classificd its financia) acsets in the fottowing measurement eategaries .-

- Those 1o be measured mbsequently al fair vatus {either through ather comprehensive inconre of theough profil & lass)
- Those measured ol amortized cost

Initisl recognition und measurement

All financial oxsetr ara resogrized initinlly ot fair value plus, in the caso of financiol ssscts ot reconded st fair vatus through profit ar loss. Uransaction costa that are ttritutable to the nequisition of
the Binencisl prset, Purchases or sales of financial assels thet require delivery of nrsets within a time frume cstablished by regulation or ion. in the market place (regular way tredes) arc
recognized am the trade dale, i.2 . the date (hat the Company commits 40 purchasn or sell the anszt

Sabsequent sezsurement

For purps f q finencisl assets are classified in four calegorien
(i) Debi instruments al amortized cast
(ii) Debt insizuments and equity instruments st fair vabue through profit or Joss (FYTPLY .

Debi Instruments ut amortized cost

A'dett i i d o1 the ized cast if both the following conditions sre niet:

{1} Buziness model test © The nsset i held within a business mode) whosa abjective is to hold assets for collecting contractun] eash fows (rother than to gell the inttrument Prioe 1o its contractual
maturity to released its fair valus hange), and

(i) Cash fow eharssteristics test : Contrectual terms of the 4asct give riso on wpecificd dates 1o cagh flows that oze solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} oo the Pprincipat amount
outstanding.

Thiz calegory is the most relevont 1o the Campany. After initial measurement, such financial assetn aes sube quently d ot ized east waing the effective interest rate (EIRY method.
Amurtized cost is calcutated by teking into aeeount any discount or premiuny oo sequisition and fees ar costa that are an integral part of tho BIR. £IR is the rate that exectly disoount the estimsted
futwre nsh receipts over the cxpected life of the finencial instrumen or o shorter period, whers Spgroptisio to the gross carrying amoun of fruncint assets. When colculoting the effective interest
a1 the sompany cstimato the expected cash flow by considering afi contractual terms of the financial instruments. The BIR smortization is aschuded in Bnance income in the profit of loas. The loases
arizing fram impairment are recognized in the profit or Joss. This categary generally spplies 1o trade and other receivables

Debt instraments at FYTPL
FVTFL is & residua) category for financisl i Any {inancial i which docs not meet the eriteria for morlized cost or FYTOCY, is <lassified as at FYTPL. A gain or loss on » Dett
i that is sub: by # FYTPL and it not & pari of » hedging re!ationship is ized in of profit or lom and presented net in the sistement of profit and tess within

othicr gains or le3ses in the period in which it ariecs. Interedt income fram thess Debt instruments iz includsd in olher ineom

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where epplicable, & part af » finsncinl asset ar part of n Company of similar finaneis] a3¢1) in primarily derecagnized (1.0., remaoved fiom the Company's slalement of fnnncisl
position) when:

-Hhe rights to receive cath Rowy from (he asset have expired, ot

~the Company has transferred its righta to reccive cazh flovs fram the asser or haz sasumed an ob¥igation fo pay the seceived eash flows in full withoul material defay to & third party under 2 "pass
1hrough® srrangement and ejther;

(a) the Company hea transfeeed the rights te receive cash Mowy fram the financisl atsets or

<b) the Company has retained the contractuel right ts receive the cath Nows of the financial asse, bl pasuntes 8 contractusl obligation 1o pay the cash flows (o aite ar more recipients

Where the Company has iransferved an assct, the Company evalusies whetker it hap transfered substantially sll the ricks and rewards of the gwnership of the financist assets. [n much cases, (ho
financial axset is derecognized. Where the entity han not transfer ially lk the rizka and ds of th hip of the financin] azsets, the financial asset s 1ot derecognized.

Whete the Company has oeither tronsferred & finmcial v1se1 nor retains substantislly oll risks and rewosds of ownerehip of the financinl asset, the finencial azect js derecognized if tha Cempany boz
nat retained conirol of the financial oxsct. Where the Company retains control of Lhe finencial nxeel, the assst is conti tobe ized to ihe extent of ing invel in the financial
ansel

Inventories

Inventories comprise completed units for mts nnd property under construction (Work in progress):

(A) Complated Unsold invenlory ia valued st lower of cost and net realizable vatue. Cost is determined by inchuding cost of Land, mnterials, services and related overheads.

(B} Work in progress i3 vahued sl cost. Cost comprises vatuo of tand (including devetopment rights), moterials, services and other ovesheads retnted to prajects inder construction

(mpatrosend of Ahancial nascls

In socordanco with IND A5 109, the Carapany spplics expected credit losses (ECL) model for wnd recognition of i
mpasure

- Financixl sasets meaured at smortised ovsl;

- Finnncial ss3ets tneasured ir valua through other comprehenaive incoma (FYTOCT),
The Company fallowa “simplified approach™ for recognition of impai loss all on trada receivables. Under the simplified spproach, the Company oty net track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it izes impai losa alts bazed an lifetime ECLs o1 cach reporting dats, right fram its initin) recognition. the Company uses  provision mstrix 1o d in? impai oz
sllowanee on the portfolia of trade ceceivatles. The provision matrix is based on its Ristarically abserved defull rales over the expected life of trade receiveble and is adjusied for forvard lacking
ealiziates. Af every reporting date, (he historical observed default ratey are updsted and chaniges in the feeward loaking estimates sre snalyzed

For recogaition af impairnzent loss on other financial axsets and risk expasurs, the Company determines ahether (here has been a significant insrease in the eredit risk since initial recognitian. [f
caedil risk has nol increased significantly, 12-month ECL iz uted to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased signiticantly, lifetime ECL is vked. If, in subsequent periad,

lexs an tha

ing financiel ozsct and credit risk

credit quality of e instrument improves such that thers i 0o langer & significant incresss in wredit ritk xinge initial reconilian, then the Company rewetLd 1o recognizing imp loas

Based on 12- montha ECL.

Retlusrification of fnancla) assets

Tha Company determines clussification of financial assets and liabitilies on initial gnition. After initial gnition, 1o veclassiflcation is meade for financial aasets which ate equity instruments

end finencis] liabikitics. For (inancisd orsets which ate debl instruments, & reclassification is mada anly if there in 8 change in the boriness model for managing those agsets, Changes to the business
mode) arc expeeled 1o bo infrequent. The Company's scnior mansgement determines change in the business model 81 8 result of extemsl of iserms) changes which are significant 10 the Company's
operations. Such chenges are evident 1o external parties. A change in the business mode) ocours when the Company eiltier begins or ccacea to perform an activity that is significant te itx aperotions. I
the Company reclassifics financial axsels, it applics the reclassification prospectively Fom the reclassification dote which is the firs dey of the i iately next reporting period following the change
in business mode]. The Cantpany docs not reatsto any previously recognized guins, loszca (including impainment gaing or loxtes) or interest.

N Financial Habitles

Inlidal recagnition and measuretnen
Financial binbitilies sre ifted at initial reoogaition an finanvial Lstililies at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and paysbles, net of direcily attribulable transactian cosis. The
Company faaneial linbilitice includa loany and borowings incuding bank overdraft, trade payable, trnde deposita, retention nioney and sther payables.

Tha af finaneial labilities depends on their clasrification, ay deseribed below:

Trate Payables

Theze amounts eeprescnty liabilities for goods and servicea provided 1o the Company prior la the end of finencist yesr which sre unpaid The amounty are unsecured and ato usuelly paid within 9¢
daya of recogoition. Trede and other payables are presented an current lisbitities untesy payment it not due within 12 months atter the ceporting period. They are recognised initially a1 fair vslue and
fubtequently messured mi amortised cost using ETR method.
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Financla) Unbllities sl fair valas through profit or lan

Finnnial Esbalities 1 foir vatus through profit or loas inslude financial lisbilities held for treding and finnnial liabilities designated upon initin] recognition a3 ot fair value through prafit or lass.
Finsnciel lisbilities wre classified a3 held for trading if vhey are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the nesr term. {Paing or losaes on lisbititica held for trading are tecognised in the stalement
of profit 4id loss. Financia) lisbilities designated upon initisl recognitior: al fair value thraugh profit or Jass ate designated as such al the initial date of recognitian, and only if the crileria in IND) AS
109 are salisfied. For liabilitics designated an FVTPL, fair valua gaing [osees attributable ta <hanges in own credit sisk ate cocognised in OCL Thess gain loas are not subsequently tranaferred 10
profil and loas. However, the Company may transfer the cunrulative pain of logy within equity. All other changes in fhir volue of mxh li ility are recognised in the statement of profit or tose. The
Company has not designated any financisl linbility a8 at fair value through profit snd losa.

Loans and borrowings

Horrovvings ase initially recognised a1 foir vatus, si¢1 of ransaction cos) ingurred. Aflex initial Tecognilian, intesest-bearing losns and borrowings are subsequenily measired ot smastised cost using the
EIR method. Ging and bosses are recognised in profil or loss when the lisbilities are derecognited as well as through the EIR izat L A ised cost in caloulated by taking inte zecount
any disoount or premium on arquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pant of the EIR. The BIR smartization i inchuded as finance costs in the #tatement of profit wnd Tass,

Financis) guarantee contracts
Financind gueranice contracts issued by the Company sra thosa cantracts that require & payment to bo made to reimburss the kolder for & Joty it incurs because the specified debdor fuils 1o make 2
payment when due in oecordones wilh the terms of o deby insirument. Finencial guarantee controsts are retognised initially as o linbility ot feir value, odjustad for transacticn casts that are direcily

atizibutobla to the issnnce of the guarentcn. Subsequently, the liobility is measured st the higher of the amount of less el ined n3 per i q of IND AR 109 snd the
amount ted less i j
Derecognithn

A financial lnbilily ia derecognized when the obligation under the (iability is dischorged or cancelled or expires. Whea an existing finsncial liatslity ks replaced by another from the same lender on
tubstantislly different terms, or the terms of an existing lisbility ara substantislly modified, such sn wichange or mcdication in reated e the doecognition of tha origins] liatility and e recognition
of & new fisbilily. The differenca in the respective carrying amounts is recopnised in the ctatement of prafit and loss,’

Offsetting of financial nsiruments
Financinl assets and finaneio] lishilities ate offset and the nel ameun is reported in the bolnnoe sheet if there is & currenily enforceable degal right to offsel the recognized smounts snd thera ix an
intention to setlle an @ net basis, 10 reobize the nasets and seiile tha liabilities simulinncously.

1 Revenue Recognition .
Revenue is recognized to the extent thet il is probable that the econamic benefits will flow to the Carnpany and the rovenue can be relisbly d. Tha fallowing specific recognition cyiteria must
26 bo mel befora revenue is recognized:

{) Revenos from Leasing
Revenua from leasing is recognized over the period of contraet, a5 and witen services aro rendered.

2. Tazen
Current Incotne tax
Cutrmil income Lo sxsets and linbilities are measured ol the amount expecind to bo recovered fram or paid to the tnxation autheritics in sccordance with the ncome Tax Adt, 1961 and tho income
ion and disak (ICD4) enacted in Irdia by using X rales and tax Lo thet are enacted or substantively enncted, ot the repariing date, )

Current inearic bax relating to items recognized outside profit or Loxs is recognized outside profil o lass (cither in other comprehensive incane or in ¢quily). Current Lax ilema are recognized in
varrelation to the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in quity. Mansgement perivdically evalustes positians taken in the tax returns with rerpst to situstions in which applicable tax
jans are subject to i jom gnd establish isians whera 1
) L P

prropriste, if any.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the Lisbility method on temporary differences between the X bascs of suscts and linbilities and their ryying omounts far financial reporting purpasea at the reporling
date.

Deferred tax lisbilities are recogaised for all taxable temporay differences

Deferred tox ancets ato ized for all deductibl p diffezences, the corry forward of tnused tax eredits and any unused tax loxses, Deforred 1ax asely sre tecognized to the exlent thal it is
probabla that taxable profit wil) be available againg which the deductible temporary dilTeraces, and the carry farward of unused tox credits and unused tax lasses can be witized

The cacrying amount of deferred tax axsets is reviewed af each reporting date and reduced to the exlent that it is no longet peobable that sufficient taxable profit will be ave:lablo to sllow all or part of
the deferred wx assel to be utilized. Unrecopnized deferecd tax assets ure re-ansessed o exch Teparting dato and aro recagnized la the extent (hat i1 has becoms probable that future taxable profila will
alliw the deferred tax naset to be recovered.

Exferred tax asscts and liabilitiea are meanaed at the Lax retes that ar expected to apply in the year when (ho assel is realized or the linbility ix setllcd, bazed on tax rates (and tax Iaws) thet have been

enacted or nubstantively enacted ot the reporting dats.

Drferred tax refating 1o items Tecognized outtida profil or loas s recognized outside the statzment of profit o5 losy (either in other comprchensive income or in eguity). Deferred tax items ara
ized in comelation to the underlying jon either in OCH or directly in cquity.

Defurred 10 astets nnd defersed Lax linbilitins pre offscr if o legolly enforceable right exists 4o sel ff current tsx oxscls egainsi current tox lisbilitics 4rd tho deferred 1axes relats to the tame tauble
ity snd the same taxation suthority.

The Compeny recognizes MAT credit available as oo asset qaly 10 the extent thal there is convineing evidenco that the Company will pay nermel income tax during the spesificd period, ie., the
period for which MAT ctedit in slloned 1o be caryied forward. In (ho Year in which the Campany recognizes MAT credil un oo osset in sczordanoe with the Guidanca Note on Aczounting for Ceedit
Available in respect of Minil Al ive Tox under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the gaid asset is created by way of credit to the iotement af profit and loss end shown ax “MAT Ceedit
Entittement ™ The Company raviows the “MAT credil entitlesent” astel at cach reporting date and writea down the assct to tho cxtent the Contpany doed not have convincing svidenss that it wAll pay
necrikd tox during the specified period.

b Borrowing eass
Borrowing cosly directly atisibutable to the isitien, conatruction or productian of an aseel that ity takes a period of time to gel ready for its intended use or sala e3¢ capitalized
a3 part of the cosl of the aset. All other barrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occuy, Borrowing ccits congist of interest and other costs thay an entity incurs in conniection with the
bormawing of fimds. Barrawing cost alwo infludes exchange differences 10 the extent reganded a8 an djustment to the borrewing coats,
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Provision and Contingent Usbillies

Provisions

A provisien i3 recognized when the Company has a present abligotion (legsl or constructive) as & result of past event, it i prabable that an outflow of resourees ambodying economis benefi will be
required 1o settte the obligation and  relisble estinute ean be made of the amount of the abl Proviriens sre nat di d 10 their present value and sre determined bascd on the best estimate
required to sellle the abligation at the reparting dato. Thesa extinates are reviewed st cach reporling data and adjusted t6 reflect the cigvent berl estimates

Contingent Liabilities

A conlingent lisbility is 8 possible obligation that arises from pasl events whase existenca will b confirned by the or of one or mare uncerlain future events beyond the
contral of the Campany or & pretent obligation thet is nol recognized bechiise it ia aot probabla thet en outflow of resourecs will bo required to s2tile the obligation. A conlingnt liskility ateo atise in
extrenely rare cases, where there iy a liabiliry that connot be recognized because it cannot bo measured reliably. the Campany does not recognire s contingent fiabitiny bt diseloses ity existenos in the
financial stntemens untess the probability of cutilow of rerources is remote.

Pravisi ingent liabilities, contingent assets and i wre seviewed ai each balancs sheet date.

Cosh and cash cqulvatenis
Cash ond cazh equivglent in the balonce sheet comprise cash et banks oad on hand and shortderm depoaits with an ariginal moturity of threo menths or less, which are pubjevt to an inaignificant rigk
of chenges in value.

Earning per share

Basic comings per share are catculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the periad attributeble to equity thereholders by the wreighted average number of squity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted sversge number of equity sharss outstanding diming the period is adjusted foe events such 3 bonus issua, bonus elemeni in o rights iseue, shore splil, and reverss shara aplit
(eansolidation of sheres) thal have changed the number of equity shates ing. without & ponding change in resources.

Fair valus measurement
Fair vadue s the price that wauld be received 10 sell an paset ot paid to tranafer o Liability in an orderly ransaction besween nuarket participants at the mearurement date. The foir value mensurement is
tated on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset o1 ransfer the lisbility takes place either:

(3 In the prineipal macken for the sasct or liakility, or

(i} n the absrnoe of & principal mscket, in the most sdvaniageous market for the sisct or Kakility

The principal er the most advantageaus market musi be aceessible by the Company.

The foir valuo of an aseet or » linility i1 d waing the iens thet market paricips would wse when pricing the asset or lability, sssuming that maskel participants aet in their
econamic best interest.

A Tiir valua measurement of 2 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generste economiv beefits by using the asze in its highest and best use or by selling it o another
merket participant il would use the assel in its higheat and beat use.

Al aesets end linbilities for which fair volus is measured o disclossd in the finaacisl staicments oro caicgorized within the fair valus hierurchy, described an follows, bosed on the lowsst level input
thet i# significont to the faic value mearurement as & whole:

{ty Leve) 1 - Quoted (unodjusted) market prices in active morkets for identical ausets or lizbilities

{ii) Lovel 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lawest lave] input thet is wignificant to the faic valua in direatly or indirectly ot bl

{iii) Level 3 - Valuation techniques far which the lowent Jeve! input thal 35 significant to the fiir valu measurement is unchseyvable

Far atscls ond linbilities thet are in the financisl on s recurring batis, the Company dstermines whether tranafers have oczurred betwesn bovels i the hicerchy by re-atscasing
catcgorization bosed on the lowest bevel inpul thal ix significant to the fair vnlus meamurenent es o whole) st the end of each reporting period.

This note pummnrises aocouting peliey for foir vobus. Other faic votue relted diselosures ars given in the relovant notes.
- Disclosures for valiation ignifi i d i

- itative discl f fair vah i y

- Iavesiment in unquated equity shares

~ Finsncial instruments ( including thate carvied st amartised cost)




Pharmas Corporation Limited

1.5 Significant fud, i and
The preparation of the Company's financial requires to make judy ertij and plion:s that affect the reparied amounts of rovennes, eXpetitey, nssets and
liatilities. amd the ing diecl ard the discl of ecntingent linhilities Lk inty whout Lhese jomy and estimstes conld resoll in cutcomes that require a mslerial

panying
adjustment to [he cotrying amount of the asset or lishitity effected in futuze periods

Esitmates and assumpttony

The key asnumptions concesting the futurs and other key sources of estimati ity ol the reporting dats, that hove o signtificant risk of causing s raaterisk adjuximent to the carrying omounts

of aseets nd linbilities within the sext financial yeer, are described below. The Company baced its umptions and esti; on aveilable when the fionacia) satements were preparcd

Exitling ci ard plions sbaut future devel bowever, may change due to market ghanges or cireumsiancas eriting beyond the conteal of the Company. Sush changes sre

reflected in the sssumplions when they ocour

{8} Taxes

Uncertainlics exist with respect to the interpretation of somplex tox regulations, changes in 1ax Iows, and the smount and timing of fulure exablo income. Oiven the wide ramge of busineys

relationships and the long term nature ond plexity of cxisting ) apr differences arising between the actus) results and the srsumplians made, o fuitura chenges to such
i could itate future ad; 1o tax incoms and cpenss siready resorded. The Company establish ! baged an estimstes. The amount of such provisions is

based on ariows factors, such ma experience of Pprovioua isx andils and differing inlermpreiations of tax reguletions by (he wxablo entity end the scaponsible tas authority Such differences of

interpretation may erise on 8 wide varicty of issues d ding om thy ditiéna provaiting in the respective damicile of the companies.

{b) Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the foir valus of financiol sssety and finsacial liokilitiey recorded in the bulancs sheet cannot be measured based on Quoted prices in active mackets, their fair vadue is measured using valuslion
lechniques inctuding the Exiscounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models sre taken fram observable murkets whers possidle, but where this is ot fearible, & degren of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judg includa iderations of ingut wuch as fiquidity risk, c1edit risk and volatility. Changes in pssumptions aboul thess factors could offect the zeported
fair velus of finoncial instruments

{e) lmpairment of non-Financial asscts
The Company assesses st each reparting date whether thers is an indication that AN sisel muy bo impaired. [f any indication exiats, or when annusl irapairment testing far an es3ed is required, the

its recovernble amount, the assel is considered impaired and {x writien down 10 ita recoverable smount. In aaseasing valuo in use, the estimated finure cosh Nows sre djscountad to their presant volue
using & pre-1ax disoount rate that reflects current market assersments of the time valua of money and the risks apecifiv to the mssct. In determining foir vatue fesy oosta of disposal, recent market
tronsactions are taken into dccount. i no such ions con be id d, un approptinte voluation wmodel in used. These enloulations ure by d by vatuation multiples, or other fair value
indicators,

[This space has been intentionaly teh blank]
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

3. Property, plant and equipment (FPE)

(Ra in Lakhs)

Particulars Land (freehold) Building Land Plant and equipment  Furniture and fixfure Computers and dats ~ Total Capltal work In ~ Grand Total
(leasehold) processing unity progresy

At cost .
As at March 31, 2019 042 10852 91.65 7683 - - 27442 £78.73 853,15
Additions - - - - - - - - -
Dispoyals/Adjustments {Refer Note 4) 042 105.52 91.65 70.17 - - 267.76 578.713 346.49
As 8t March 31, 2020 - - - 656 - - 6.56 - 6,66
Additions - - - . - - - -
Disposals/Adjustmenis (Refer Note 4) - - - - - - - - -
At at March 31, 2021 - - - 646 - - £.56 - 6.66
Depreciation
As at March 31, 2019 - i - an - - 36.03 - ' 36.03
Charge for the year - - - 6.88 - - 6,88 - 6.88
Disposals - 392 - 3754 - - 41.46 - 41.46
Ar at March 31, 2020 - - - 145 - - 145 - 148
Charge for the year - - - 286 . - 236 - 2.86
Disposats / Adjustments (Refer Note 4) - - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 = - - 431 - - 431 - 4.3
Net earvying amaunt -
As af March 31, 2021 - - - 235 - - 2.35 - 2.35
A 8l Mareh 31, 2020 - - - 521 - - 521 . 521

As at March 31, 2019 042 101.50 91.65 H72 - - 23839 578.73 817.12
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Investment Property

s in Lacs

Investment Property Land (frechold) Buitding Land (leasehold) To(::l‘—l
under development

At cott
As ot March 31, 2010 - - -
Additions - B
Disposals {1,398.31) (575.15) (105.52) (91.65) (2,074.63)
Ay at March 31, 2020 1,39831 579.15 105.52 91.65 2,174.63
Additions 1,351.69 2,750.00 4,101.69
Disposals/Adjustments 2,750.00 - - - 2,750.00
As at Mexch 31, 2021 - £79.15 1,855.52 9165 3,526.32
Amortization
Ag at March 31,2019 - - -
Additions - 1.96 1.96
Disposals - (3.92) - (3.92)
As at March 31, 2020 - - 588 - 5.88
Additions - - 30.6% - 30,69
Disposals - - - - -
As at Mareh 31, 2021 - - 36,57 - 36.57
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 - 579.15 1,818,958 91.65 3,489.75
As at March 31, 2020 1,398.31 579.1% 95.64 91.65 2,168.75

* During the previous yesr, gross block of freehotd Iand of Rs. $79.15 Lakhs, lessehold land of Rs, 91.65 Lakhs, building of Rs. 105,52 Lakhs with accumuyleted deprecistion
thereon of Rs. 3.92 Lakhs was transferred from propenty, plant and equipments to Investment Properties,

(i) Contractual Obligations
Refer Nots 24 For discl of contractual i for the acquitition of Inv t Pr

for Invest ent Properties

> = ?
] 40.44
Less: Direct operating expenses generating rental income 2534
Profit from leasing of Investment Properties 15.10
Less: Depreciaticn Expense 30.69
Profit/ (Loss) from leasing of I ent Properties after depreciati -15.59

(iii) Falr Value hizrarchy and vatustion technique

The fair value of investment property has been determined by the company internally, having appropriate gnised professional quelification and recent experience in the
location and category of the property being valued. The fair valus has been arrived using discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash Aows
considering growth in rental of 15% on every 3 years, vacancy rte of 3% and discount rate of 13.00%,

Reconclliation of fair Vatue: {Rs. In Lakhs)
Opening Balance as a1 18t April 2020*% 9,135.060
Increase in Fair Value 4,686.77
Decline in Fair Value -

Closing Balance as at 31st March 2021* . 13,821.77

* Other than Tnvestment property under Development

# As at 31st March, 2020, the fair values of the propesties are 5135.00 Lokhs (land value only). The fair value of investment property has been determined by extemal,
independent property valuer, having appropriate recognised professiona] qualification and recent experienca in the location and category of the property being value. A valuation
model in eccordance with tat r ded by i ional valuation standards committee had been applied, The company obtains independent valuations for its investment
property annually and fair value has been d as Level 3, Fair Values of land are arrived using sales perable method. In nt property under
development are subject to fair valuation once ready for commercinl rental activities.

Valuation models applied for valuation:
Discounted cash flow method - net present value is determined based on projected cash flows di

d at an appropriate rate
{iv) Lensing Arrangemenis
Certnin investment properties are leased to tenants ynder long term operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

The company hag leased out office premises under non cancellable operating leases. The contractual future minmusm lease related receivables in respect of these leases are

T
AR S 22T 1 R

o %

Not later than 1 year

later then 1 year but not later than 3 years
maose than 3 years - -
Total 665.99 -

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

{Rs. in Lacs)
Particuars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
5. Non Current financial assets
(i} Leans (unsecured considered good)
Loans and Advances* - 38.00
*The deposit have been given 1o Forum I Aviation Lid at interest rate of 8% p.a.
- 38.00

[This space has heen intentionally left bank)
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Notes forming part of the financlal statements

{Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
6. Current financial assets
(1y Loans (Unsecured, considered good)}
Laoans to related parties® - 1,000.00
= 1,000.00
*The interest free loan has been given to Max Estates Limited.
{ii) Trade receivables
Unsecured ;-
Trade receivables - considered good 13.95 23¢9
Trade receivables - considered doubtful - - -
10.95 239
Less: Impairment allowance for trade receivable considered doubifial - -
1098 .39

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due
from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is 8 partner, a director or 8 member.

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 22

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 60 to 90 days.

(lii) Other financial assets

Recoverable from MEL for sale of land and building (unsecured, considered good) - 244,00

Interest accrued on deposits - 1.37

Rent receivable {Equalisation) 28.68 -
28.68 245.37

{iv} Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
On current accounts 34.43 79.76
Cash on hand 0.13 0.20
34.56 79.96
7. Other current nssets (unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Advances to suppliers, employees etc 0.15 .
Prepaid expenses 0.04 0.14
Balance with statutory authorities* 57.78 313.07
Security Deposit 045 {.45
58.41 313.66

*during previous year, includes GST input credit an Construction services based on the Hon'ble Orissa High Court Judgment in case of Safani Retreats Private Limited.

8. Current tax assets
Advance income tax (net of provigions) 11,36 5.60
11.36 5.60
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

9 Share capita) and other equity

i) Equity share capital

_ (Rs in Lacg)
Particuars As at Asar
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
/) Authorized
60,000,000 (March 31, 2020: 60,000,000) equity shares of Re. 1/- each 500.00 500.00
10% 470,000 (March 31, 2020; 470,000) Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of Rs, 100/~ each 470.00 470.00
5% 1,500,000 (March 31, 2020: 1,500,000) Cumulative Redeermable Preference share of Rs. 100/+ each £.500.00 1,500.00
2,570.00 2,570.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
5,325,752 (March 31, 2020: 55,325,752) equity shares of Re. 1/- cach fully paid up 553.26 553.26
3,00,000 10% (March 31, 2020: 1,15,400) Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each -
Forfeited shares 2.66 2.66
Total issued, subscribed and fully patd-up share capital 55592 555.92
b} Reconciliation of the shares cut: ling at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Equity shares No. of shares {Ras. In lucs) No. of shares {Rs. In lacs)
At the beginning of the year 5,53,25,752 55326 5,53,25,7152 $53.26
Add: Shares issued during the year - - -
Add: Shares issued during the year/period (Refer note no. - - -
Less: Cancelled pertaining to scheme of demerger - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 5.53.25 752 35326 5,53,25.752 553.26

¢) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having & par value of Re. 1/~ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 1o o vote per share. The company has not declared any
dividend. In the event of liquidation of the pany, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive tempining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts,

The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

4} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the C p

Name of the Sharcholder Merch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Max India Lirmited - . - -
Max Estates Limited 4,71,22,747 85.171% 4,71,22,747 85.17%

¢} Aggregate sumber of Shares issued for consideration other than cash during the year of five years immediately preceding the reporting date - NIL

{This space has been intentionally left btank)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

(ii}  Other equity

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Ags at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Capital reserve (refer note a below)

Securities Premium (refer note b below) 2,21520 -

Retained earnings (refer note ¢ below) (659.19) (365.91)
Equity Component of % Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (refer note d below) - -

Equity Component of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (refer note e 44.59 17.15
below)

R | I %}

Notes:

a) Capital reserve
Balance as at beginning of the period/year . .
Add: additions on account of demerger - -

b) Securities premium account

At the beginning of the year - -
Add: premium on issue of 10% Cumulative Convertible Preference shares 221520 1,384 80
Add: additions on ESOPs exercised - -
Add: transferred from employee stock oplions outstanding - -

Less: Premium on Cumulative Reedemable Preference Shares® - {1,384.80)
2,215.20 -
<) Retained earnings
- At the beginning of the year (365.91) 1,102.26
Add: Transferred from Equity Component of Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares on
extinguishment of eriginal liability - 865.20
Less: Premium on 9% Cumulative Reedemable Preference Shares* - (1,955.34)
(365.51) 1212
Profit/(Loss) for the year {272.03) (363.67)
Less: Distribution of Profit on account of Financial Guarantee provided to Holding Company (21.25) (14.36)
Items of other comprehensive income recognized directly in retained earnings
Re-measurement of post employment benefit obligation (net of tax) (item of OCI) - -
At the end of the year (659.19) (365.91)
d) Equity Component of 9% Cumuiative Redeemable Preference Shares
At the beginning of the year - 86520
]Less: Transferred to Retained eaming on extinguishment of otiginal liability - {865.20)
At the end of the year - -
€} Equity Component of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
At the beginning of the year 17.15 -
Add: edditions during the year . 27.44 17.15
At the end of the year 44.59 17.18

* During the previous year, company has provided for the premium on redemption of 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares amounting
Rs.3340.14 Lacs out of the available profits and security premium account.

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Retained earnings - Retained eamnings are profits of the company eamed till date less transferred to general reserve,

Equity Component of Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares - Preference shares are to be redeemed on or before March 31 , 2020 i.e. 20 years
from the date of issue of the said redeemable preference share in terms of Section 80 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Anticle 9 of the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Equity Component of Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Preference shares are to be converted on or before March 31, 2020
i.¢. 20 years from the date of issue of the said preference share in terms of Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Security Premium - Securities Premium Reserve is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised as per the provisions of the
Companies
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Notes forming part of the financial statettents

10. (i) Borrowings

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non-current borrowings :-
Liability Companent of Compound Financial Instruments 17049 96.53
{10% Cumulative Compulsery Convertible Preference share)
270,49 96.53
Agpregate Secured loans - 96.53
Aggregate Unsecured loans 270.49 96.53

Note Rights, preferences and restriciion attached to shares

Preference Shares

(i}  During the Financial year 2019-2020, the Company has issued 115400 number of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares. The said shares are

compulsory convertible on or before the end of 20 years from the date of allotment i.e, 30th March, 2020. The holder has the option to convert the preference shares at
any time on or before the 20 years teture into 100 equity shares of Re 1/~ per preference shares. The preference shareholders have voting rights only in respet of certain
matters as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, The preference shareholders also carry a preferential right vis-a-vis equity shares of the
company with respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of a winding up or repayment of capital,
Further, during the year, company has issued 184600 number of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares, The said shares are compulsory convertible
on or before the end of 20 years from the date of allotment i.e. 3rd December, 2020 and 30th December 2020. The holder has the option to convert the preference shares
at any time on or before the 20 years tenure into 100 cquity shares of Re 1/ per preference shares. The preference shareholders have voting rights only in respet of certain
matters as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The preference sharcholders also carry a preferential right vis-a-vis equity shares of the
company with respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of a winding up or repayment of capital.

(i)  Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of Shareholder As at 3st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Max Estate Limited 3,00,000 100% 1,15,400 100%
(i} The 10% Cumulative Compulosry Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") are presented In the Balance Sheet a3 followa:
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Face Value of CCPS issued 300.00 11540
Premium on CCPS issued 3,600.00 1,384.80
3,900.00 1,500.20
Less: Liability Component of CCPS 255.41 98.25
3,644.59 . 1,401.95

*The equity component of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares has been presented in the Statement of Changes in Equity,

{ii) Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 3, 2021 March 31, 2020

Security deposits received 21.20 -
Uneamted Financial Guarantee Fees 28.20 12,70

49.40 12.70
—
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

L1.  Current financial Habilities
(1) Borrowings
Cash credit from banks

Loan from related party ( Unsecured) (Refer Note 1) 1,138.44 -

1,138.44 -

Note 1: During the year, The Company has taken term loan from its holding Company i.e. Max Estates Limited (MEL'). The said loan is interest free and
repayable on demand.

(ii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises* {Refer Note 27) -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 7.74 9.87

7.7 9.87

* Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

As per the Act, the Company is required to identify the Micro and small suppliers and pay them interest on overdue beyond the specified period
irrespective of the terms agreed with such suppliers. Based on the information available with the Company, none of the creditors have confirmed the
applicability of act on them, Hence, the liability of the interest and disclosure are not required to be disclosed in the financial staterments.

(iii) Other financisl liabllities

Current Maturities of Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments {Refer Note 10) - 1.72
Security deposits received 42.09 70.69
Premium on Redemption of CRPS (Refer Note 29) - 3,340.14

Deferred Income - income Received in Advance 7.94 -
Uneamed Financial Guarantee Fees 4.07 L.60
Advance from Related Parties - 147.68
54.10 3,561.83

12.  Other current labllities

Statutory dues L.00 14.68

1.00 14.68
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
13 Revenue from operations
{Revenue from contracts with customers)
Lease Rentals 11.53 21.67
Amortisation of Deferred Income 0.23 -
Revenue from Rentals(Equilisation as per Ind-AS) 28.68 -
Total 40.44 21.67
13.1 Contract Balances
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade Receivables 10.95 2.39
Rent receivable (Equalisation) 28.68 -
Contract Liabilities - -
Trade receivables are non interest bearing. Credit period generally falls in the range of 60 to 90 days.
13.2 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue as per the contracted price ' 11.53 21.67
Adjustments
on account of Equilisation 28.68 -
on account of deferred Income 0.23 -
Revenue frot contracts with customers 40.44 21.67

13.3 Perfomance obligations
Obligation of the Company is to provide lease services to its group companies and accordingly recognises revenue over the period of the contract

14.

based on the services rendered.

Other income

Gurantee Fee Income - Ind AS 277 0.06
Interest received 0.37 304
Profit on sale of long term investment - 19.42
Profit on sale of current investments - 2,46
Other non-operating income 0.00 0.62

3.14 25.60
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

15. Employee benefits expense

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars for the period ended for the period ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries, wages and bonus - 0.81
- 0.81
16. Finance cosis
(Rs. in Lacs)
for the period ended for the period ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest on CRPS 215.57 152.05
Interest on CCPS ) 15.09 -
Interest on Security Deposit Received - Ind AS Adjustment 0.19
Interest on Income Tax - 12.48
230.85% 164.53
17. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of preperty, plant and equipment (refer note 3} 2.86 8.84
Depreciation of investment property (refer note 4) 30.69 -
33.55 3.84
18. Other expense
Insurance 0.15 0.0t
Rates and taxes 398 10.71
Power and fuel 23.84 2.55
Repairs and maintenance: )

Building - 63.04
Printing and stationery - 6.68
Travelling and conveyance 0.24 0.04
Communication - 0.04
Legal and professional 14.20 23.18
Auditor's Remuneration 1.92 ] 203
Directors' sitting fee 1.28 218
Security & Housekeeping . 1.96 -
Loss on discard of fixed assets - 523
Miscellaneous expenses 1.86 1.67

49.43 117.37
Payment to auditor
As anditor:
Audit fee (including limited review) 1.92 203

Other services {certification fees) - -
1.92 2.03
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1% Income Tax ]
The major components of income tax expense for the period/year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are :

Statement of profit and loss :

Profit and loss section
(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current income tax :
Current tax 2.20 3.65
MAT credit entitlement - -
Income tax paid for earlier years (0.42) 6.51
Deferred tax ;
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - 109,23
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1.78 119.39
OCI section ;
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year/peried ;
Particulars for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Income tax charge/{credit) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans - -
Income tax charged te OCI - -
Reconciliation of tax expense and the Accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2020 and
March 31, 2019;
Particulars for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Accounting profit before tax {270.25) (144.28)
Accounting profit before income tax (270.2%5) (244.28)
At India's statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (March 31, 2020: 29.12%) 26.00% 29.12%
Computed Tax Expenss {70.27) (71.14)
Adjustment:
MAT Credit Entitlement - -
Ind AS Adjusiment - {57.29)
Non-taxable income (8.18) (L11)
Disallowed Expenses 80.70 §2.30
Income tax paid for earlier vear (0.42) 6.51
Impact of last year return filling - 160.12
At the effective income tax rate 1.84 119.39
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1.78 119.39
Total tax expense 1.78 119.39
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Asat As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Deferred tax labilities
Ind AS Impact Adjustment - -
Gross deferred fax liabilities (a} - -
Mat Credit () 43,83 43.83
Deferred tax Assets (net) 43.83 43.83
Reconciliation of deferred tax Assets / {liability)(net):
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particul As at As at
articulars 31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
4—_—1__.___1__
Opening balance as of April 1 43.83 153.06
Tax expense/( income) during the period recognised in profit or loss - (109.23)
Tax expense/{ income) during the period recognised in OCI - -
Closing balance as at March 31 43.83 43.83

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax sutherity.

Provision for Tax verified in financial statements for the year ending 31.03.2021 are only provisional and it is subject to change at
the time of filing Income Tax Retum based on actual addition/deduction as per provision, of Inctime. Tax Act'1961.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

20

Earning Per Share
(Rs. in Lags
Particulars et
for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Basic EPS
Profit after tax (Rs. in Lacs) (272.03) (363.57)
Less: dividends on convertible preference shares & tax thereon
Net profit/(loss} for calculation of basic EPS (272.03) (363.67)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year (Nos.) 5,53,25,752 5,53,25,752
Basic eamings per share (Rs.) {0.49) {0.66)
Dilutive EPS
Profit after tox (Rs. in Lacs) (272.03) (363.67)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year for dilutive 5,53,28,152 5,53,25,752
Diluted eamings per share (Rs) (0.49) (0.66)

Note: The anti-dilutive effect for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 s ignared.
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21 Commitments and contingencies

a) Commitments (Rs. In Jacs)
Particulars for the year ended for the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Captial Commitment
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not accounted for 1,100.00
Less Capital advances -
Net commitments 1,100.00
Other Commitment
Corporate Guarantee has been given in favour of Max Estate Limited to the bank for Rupee Term 1,500.00

Loan not exceeding Rs. 4500 Lacs

Exclusive charge over receivables/cash flowsfrevenues (including booking amounts) and all
insurance proceeds, both present and future to the extent of the Company’s share, arising out of or in
connection with the project "Max Houge" being developed on land located at 1516/338,339,340,
Village Bahapur, near Okhla Railway Station, Delhi admeasuring approx. 2,869 square meters.

b) Contingent lizbilities

Particulars

for the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

- Income Tax

Total Contingencies
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Related party disclosures

Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not

Ultimate Holding Company

Max Ventures & Industries Limited {w.e.f 25th Nov 2019)

Holding Company

Max Estates Limited (w.e.f 25th Nov 2019)

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Max Square Limited (formerly Northern Propmart Sofutions Limited)(w.e.f 25th Nov
2019)

Max Towers Private Limited {formerly Wise Zone Builders {P) Ltd.)(w.e.f 25th Nov
2019)

Names of other related parties with whom tran

sactions have taken place during the year

Directors and Key management personnel

Mrs. Kiran Sharma(Independent Director) (w.c.f 11th Aug 2015)

Mr. Sanjay Khandelwat (Independent Director) (w.e.f 11th Aug 2015)
M. Kishansingh Ramsinghaney {Director) {w.¢.f 17th Mar 1997)

Mr Rishi Raj {w.e.f. 25th Nov 2019)

Mr. Anshul Gaurav (w.e.f 25th Nov 2019)

Mr. Archit Goyal (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f 25th Nov 2019)

Entities controlled or jointly controlled by person
or entities where person has significantly
influence or entities where person having control
is Key Management personnel

Siva Realty Ventures (P Ltd. (w.e.f 25th Nov 2019)

Max Skill First Limited (w.e.f 25th Nov 2019)

Max One Distribution And Services Limited (w.e.f 25th Nov 2019)
Antara Senior Living Limited (w.e.f 25th Nov 2019)

Max Ateev Limited (w.e.f 25th Nov 2019)

Vana Retreats (P) Ltd. (w.e.f. 25th Nov 2019

New Delhi House Services Limited(w.e.f 25th Nov 2019)

Max Learning Ventures

Antara Care Homes Limited

Note : Related party relationships are as identified

by the company and relied upon by the Auditors
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Dretails of transactions with related parties

S.No

Nature of transaction

1

wr

Reimbursement of Expenses (Paid)

Reimbursement of Expenses {Charged co CWIF/IP}

Sale of Investment

recd. on Seeurty Deposit
Revenue from Guarantee Fee

Revenve from Lease Rent

Interest on Payment of Premium on Redemnption of 9%
Cumulative Redremable Preference Shares
Premium on Red of 9% Cuminlative Red bl

Preference Shares

Issue of 10% C.
Security Deposit Recelved

Director’s Sitting Fee

Legal & Professional
Loan Given

Loan taken

Repair & Maintenance
Salary Paid

Legal & Professional

pulsery Converiible Pref Shares

{Rs. In lacs)
for the year ended for the year ended
Farticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Max Estaies Limited 13.98 143.67
Max Vesturer and Indusiries Limited 0.25 -
Total 14.23 143.67
932,20 1,398.31
$32.20 1,398.31
- 71848
- 848
.37 292
.37 292
.77 0.06
2.77 0.06
0.22 0,22
{0.03 011
1.44 7.08
072 0.72
- 9.45
0.50 -
012 -
L6 -
11.53 17.58
2115.37 -
215.57 -
. 3,340.14
- 3.340.14
2,359.80 1,500.20
1,399.80 1,500.20
- 40.60
- 40.00
D.68 113
0.60 1.05
1.28 18
0.8 -
0.50 -
6287 1,000.00
£2.87 1,000.00
2,201.31 -
2,201.31 =
- 5351
- %331
- {81
- 0.81
- D.15
- 0.15
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(b) Balances outstanding at year end
(Ra. In Iacs)
8.No |Nature of transaction Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1 Amount recelvable Antarg Senior Living Limted - 1.55
Max Ateev Limited 0.13 0.06
Max One Distribution And Services Limited 0.03 0.06
Max Skill First Limited 0.60 0.39
Siva Realty Ventures (P} Ltd. - 0.32
Max Estates Limited - 229.87
Max India Limited 0.03 -
Antara Care Homes Limited 0.21 -
[Max Asset Services Lid. 9.63 -
Max Learning Ventures 0.35 -
Total 10.98 232.26

2 LAmount payable Max India Limited - 3,483.95
Max Skill First Limited 0.18 0.18
|Antara Senior Living Limited - 12.91
Vana Retreats Pvi, Lid. 1.91 1.91
Max Estates Limited 40.00 40,00
Max Asset Services Limited 16.32 -
Kiran Sharma 0.28 -
Sanjay Khandelwal 0.28 -
Total 58.96 3,538,98

1 Loan Taken Max Estates Limited 1.138.44 -
Total 1,138.44 -

3 Loan Given Max Estates Limited - 1,000.00
Total - 1,000,00

3 Guarantee Given Meax Estates Limited 3,905.00 1,500.00
Total 3,905.00 1,500.00

Notes

8) The transactions with related parties are made on terms eq

b) A Qut! b g are
¢) Mo exp has been
related parties,

uivalent fo those that prevail in arm's length transactions
ed and will be settled in cash or receipts of goods and services,
d for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 for bad or doubtful receivables in respect of amounts owed by

{c) The remuneration of director and other member of Key Managerial Personnel during the year waa a3 follows:-

S No. [Particutars

2020-21

2019-20

Short-term benefits

Post employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Share based payments
Termination benefits

L e N 4

Total
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b2

Segmaent reporting
T‘hg ?Pmpuuy isa ORE segmedt company in the business of real estats development and leasing, Al its opergtions arc tocatcd in Indis, eccordingly, the Company views these
acievitien as one business segment, there arc no additéonal diselosurcs 10 be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’.

Financial instruments

The vomparison of carrying value and fair value of financizl instruments by cetegories that are pot measured 2t fair valus are a3 follows;

(Rs, in Lacs)
Category Carrying value Fair Value
Mareh 31, 2031 Mareh 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2021 | March 31,2020
1) Financial asset at amortized cost
Loans - 1,038.00 - 1,038,00
Other financial assets 28.68 24537 28.68 245,37
Trade reccivables 10,95 239 10.95 239
Cash and cash equivalents id58 79.96 3456 79.96

2) Financial liabilities at amortized cogt
Non current & current

Borrowings 1,408.93 96.53 1,408.93 96.33
Other financia! liskilitics 103.50 3,574.53 103,30 3.574.53
Trade payables 1.7 9.87 174 .87

3) Financin) asset carvied at fair valoe through statement of profit & loss

Cument vvesiments . .

1 The Company assessed that trade Teceivables, cash and cash equivalests, other bank bal , toans snd ad 1o related panies, interest receivablo, trade payables, capital
creditors are considercd to be the game as their fair vahees, dus io their shart tem pature.

2 The foir vatue of the (inancist asscts and lisbilitics is ineluded 1 the amount t which the i could be exchanged in a current tr ion between willing parties, ather than
in & forced or liquidation sate. The fol) ing methods and ptions wers used 1o stimate the fair values:

3 Lang-term fixed-rate and varioble-rate receivablesborvowings are evalueied by the Company based on parameters such as interest 1aigs, specific country risk faclors, individual
sreditworthiness of the customer and the risk ehoracleristics of the financed project. Based on this cveluation, allowances are taken info sccount for the expected credit losses of
thess receivables,

4 The fair velue of unquoted instruments, loans fram Sanks and othor finencial linbilities as well as other noncurrent financial linbilities aro estimated by di ting future cash
Mows using ruics currently availsble for debl ot gimilar terms, ¢redit risk and remaining maturitics. The valuation Tequires management Lo use observable and uncbserveble inputs

5 The fair values of the Company's interest-benring borrowings and other non-current financisl liabilities are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the
issuer’s borrowing rate a3 ol the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk sy ot March 3 1, 2021 was assessed io bo insignificant,

2400 Fnir‘ulue hlerarchy

The Compay uses the following hiererchy for determining and disclosing the fuir value of finantis! instruments by valuation technique:

Level I: quoted {unadjusted} prices in ective markets for identical mssets or labilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs thai have s significant cfizcl on the recorded fair value are obscrvable, cither dirccly or indirectly
Level 3: techniques that use inpruts that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that ore nol based on observable market data

() Quanticstive disclosure of fair value hiererchy for financial assels 4 on March 31, 2021
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2621
Level ) Level2 Level 3
Losns - - - -
Other financisl nssets 28,68 - 28.68 -
Trade receivables 10,95 - 10.95 -
Current investments - - - -
{ii} Quantitative disclosure of fair valus measureitent hierarchy for financial assets o on March 31, 2020
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans 1,038.00 - 1,033.00 -
Other tinancial assets 145,37 - 245.37 -
Trade receivables 239 . 239 -
Current investments - - - -
(i) Quantitative disclosure of fir value measurement hierarchy for financial lisbilities oy on March 31,2021
Particulars Carrying value Fuir value
March 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Noa turrent & current
Borrowings 1408.93 . 1,408.93 .
Other finarcial lisbilitics 103.50 - 103.5¢ B
Trade paynbles .74 - 7.74 -
{iv) Quantitstive discloswre of fair volue measurement hicrarchy for financiol liabilitics a1 on March 31, 2020
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
Mareh 31, 2020
Level 1 cLevel 2 Levet 3
Borrowings 95.53 - - -
Other finongial liabilities 351433 - 3,574.53 -
Trade payables 9.87 - 9.87 -

[This speee haz been intentionally left blank]
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15  Financlal risk management objectives and policies

The Company's has instituted an overall risk management programme which also focuses on the unprediciability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potental adverse
effects on the Company's financial performance. The Corporate Finance department, evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the various stakeholders,

The Company is exposed to capitel risk, market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. These risks are managed pro-actively by the Senior Management of the Company, duly
supported by various Groups and Committees. .

) Capital risk

The Company's objective when managing capital is fo safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide returns to its shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to provide for sufficient capital expansion. The capital structure of the Company congists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 11, cash and
cash equivalents disclosed in note 7 and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position,

b} Liguidity gisk,

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial cbligations as they become due, The Company employees prudent liquidity risk management
practices which inter alia means maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Given the nature of the underlying businesses, the corporate finance maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines and this way
liquidity risk is mitigated by the availability of Rands to cover future commitments. Cash flow forecasts are prepared not only for the entities but the Group as a whole and the
utilized bortrowing facilities are monitored on a daily basig and there i3 adequate focus on good mansgement practices whereby the collections are managed efficientty. The
Company while borrowing funds for large capital project, negotiates the repayment schedule in such 4 manner that these match with the generation of cash on such investment.
Longer term cash flow forecasts are updated from time 1o tima and reviewed by the Investment and Performance Review Committee of the Board.

The table below represents the maturity profile of Company’s financial ligbilities of the end of March 31, 2021 based on contractual undiscounted payments -

Macch 31, 2020 0-1 Years | 1§ Years | Morethans [
Years
Bomowings - - 96.53 96.53
Trade payable 9.87 - . 9.87
Other financial liabilities 3,561.83 - - 3,561.83
% to Total 97.37% 0.00% 2.63% 100.00%
0;
Bormrowings 1,138.44 - 270,49 1,408.93
Trade payable 1.74 - - 7.74
Other financial liabilities 54.10 ~ 21.20 75.30
% to Total 80.45% 0.00%| 19.55%| 100.00%
Credit risk

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or cusiomer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. :

(i} Trade reccivables

Customer credit risk is managed by eath business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit sk management,
Management evaluate credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. Receivable control management Department assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and other factors, The Company provides credit to individuals on exceptional basis only. An impairment analysis is performed at
cach reporting date on an individual basis,

(if) Financia instruments and cash deposit

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made in bank deposits and other risk free securities, The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through
counter party's potential failure 1o make payments, Credit limits of all suthorities are reviewed by the management on regular basis. All balances with banks and financial
institutions is subject to low credit risk due to good credit ratings assigned to the Company.

The Company's maxitmum exposure 1o credit risk for the.components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in the liquidity table above,

d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair velue of future cash flows of'a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises three types of
tisk; currency rete risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans
and borrowings, deposits, investments and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections retate 1o the position as at March 31,
2021. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on; the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-
financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks, This is based on the
financial assets and financial liabilities held as of March 31, 2021,

[This space has been Intentionally left blank]
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Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s copital capital includes issued equity sttributable to the equity sharcholders of the Company, share premium and all other equity
reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s capitsl manag, ig that it maintain an effici capital and maximize the sharcholder value. The Company manages its
capital strucrure and makes adjt in light of changes in ic canditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, The

tal to shareholders or issie new shares. The Company monitors capita usinyg a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debr. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearin

8 loang and borowings, trade and other paysbles, less cash and cash equivalents,
excluding discontinued operations,

Rs In lacs
Asat As at
] March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Borrowings ) 1,408.93 96.53
Cther financial tiabilities 103.50 157453
Trade payables T.74 ’ 9.87
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents (34.56) {79.96)
Net Debt 1,485.61 3,600,97
Equity Share Capital 55592 55592
Other Equity 1,600.50 {348.76)
Tolal Equity 2,156,52 207.15
Total Capital and net debt 364213 3,808.13
Gearing ratio 40.79% 94.56%

Na changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 3 1,2020.

27 TDETAILE OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ETERFRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERFRISES DEVELOPMENT
{MSMED) ACT, 2005
.Tha Micm, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available inf: ion, which has been retied upan by the auditors. According to such
identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of The Micte, Small and Medium Enterprise Devel P (MSMED}) Act, 2006' are as follows
(Rs. In lacs)
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
i) The principal amaunt and the interest dus therean remaining unpaid to any supplier
- Principal amount Nil Nil
- Interest therean Nil Nil
i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tems of section 18, along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day. Nil Nil
ii5) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of detay in meking payment (which bave been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this act. il Nit
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid, Wil Nil
v} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small investor. Nil il

28
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The above information has been determined 1o the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the status of suppliers
under the MSMED.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” effective 1st April, 2019, a3 notified by the ministry of Carporate Affairs (MCA) in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Amendment Rules, 2019, using modified retrospective method. The adoption of this standard did not have any impact on transition periad and during the year.

The company has entered into LOI with WeWork India Management Private Limited ("Wework") for Investment Property namely Max house Okhla during the previous year with a
security deposit of Rs.40 Lakh, During the year, LOI was terminated and agreement cannot be executed.

Redemption of 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

The Contpany had allotted to Max India Limited 15,00,000 9% Cumulative Red ble Pref 8hares (CRPS) of the face value of Rs. 100 each at par on April 1, 2000. The
Company has decided to redeem the preference shares at face value plus a redemption premium of Rs, 3340.14 Lacs. The Company has redeemed & paid face value of Rs. 1500 00
Lacs and provided for Rs. 3340.14 Lacs a3 premium on redemption of CRPS on redemption date i.e. 31st March, 2020. During the previous year, due to pandemic COVID-19 &
lockdown in the couniry, premium payment has been deferred upto June 30, 2020 i.e. for 8 period of 3 more months from the due dare, along with compensation @9% p.a. 6ll

actual date of premium payment which hag been further ded till 3131 D her, 2020. The prefe shareholder agreed the deferment in line with moratorium announcements
by G of India on of impect of COVID-19. Necessary intimation for premium payment deferment is filed before the office of the Registrar of Companies. In view
of the 5 pany has lied with the applicable provisions of Companies Acl, 2013 and aforesaid tegislation will not have any impact on the financial statement.

Impact of COVID-19 on Financial Statements

The outbreak of Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) pandemic globally and it India and q ionwide lockd ordered by the Governments has caused significant
disturbance and slowdown of ecanomic activity. The Company has assessed the impact of this pandenic on its b p and has d the recoverability and carrying
values of its financial and non-financial assets as at the balance sheet date using various intemal and extemal information up to the date of approval of these Standalone Ind AS
financial statements. Basis this the management has canctuded that neither there is any material adverse impact on operiions of the Company nor any material adjustments required

at this stage in the Standalone Ind AS financial siatements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021

However, the impact assessment of Covid-19 is a conttnuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The impact of Covid-19 may be different from
that estimated as at the date of approval of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements and the Company will continug to moniter any material changes to future economic
conditions.

There have been no delays in wansferring amounts required to be transferred to the I Education and Pratection Fund.

The Comgany has no cutstanding derivative or foreign curency exposure as ot Lie end of the current year and previous year.
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33 Events after the Reporting period
There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations

34 Note No. | to 33 form integral part of the Balance sheet and Statement of profit & Losa.
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